



BYE-LAWSOFDr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchoolComplex.BokaroChapter

NAME: This complex shall becalled 'Dr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro'.

Office :" The Head Office of the RKS Complex will be at the school whose Principal will be elected as the President of the RKS Complex."

### *1.0.θ* Interpretation:

The Jurisdiction of The Dr.RadhakrishnanSahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter shall include members of AllCBSEAffiliatedSchoolsof Secondary/SeniorSecondary Level oftheBokaroDistrict, Jharkhand.

The Members of this group shall be Head of Schools (Principal)/Principal Incharge/Officiating PrincipalaffiliatedtoCentralBoardofSecondaryEducation,NewDelhiasperinstructionsoftheCBSEBoardvideletterno.ACAD/H(I&R)/SAHODAYA/2011dated: 15<sup>th</sup> July 2011. This Complex shall be headed by the concerned President.

The Dr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro Chapter shall have the State of Jharkhand as its Jurisdiction. It shallsupport the Members of the District of Bokaro with respect to Academic excellence and standardization for the benefit of the stake holders i.e. students and parents of CBSE affiliated schools within the district of Bokaro.

## 1.0.1 SahodayaSchoolComplexes:The Concept

In 1987, CBSE brought out a publication titled, "Freedom to learn and freedom to grow through SahodayaSchool Complexes" (SSCs) which Organizedon "SSCs" as a voluntary association of schools in a given area, who through mutual choices, have agreed to come together for a systematic and system-wise renewal of

thetotaleducationalprocess.Inotherwordsas"Sahodaya" signifies rising together, it identifies six areas, for systematic reforms, for collaboration amongst schools of its complex:

Through positive promotional efforts, the Board has helped schools to come together and form an interactive andsharing relationship. At present, there are 260 such complexes which are active throughout the country, coming together to share innovative practices in all aspects of school education including curriculum design, evaluation and pedagogy while providing support services for teachers and students and also introducing the relevance of co-operative learning & collaborative networking.

## 1.0.2 HistoricalBackground

Though the idea of Sahodaya School complexes was first mooted by the Education Commission,1966, it was the National Policy on Education, 1966 which reiterated in strong words the need for promoting schoolcomplexes for meeting the quality of education. This set the tone for bringing the schools together and networking them for healthy interaction among themselves . The first national conference of Principals of CBSE affiliated schools organized by CBSE in collaboration with APSC Madras in 1985 emphasised collaboration among schools and establishing linkages in academic and other co-curricular and cultural activities. The idea of Sahodaya School Complexes was further concretised when CBSE,







jointly with NPSC, organized a two day conference of school principals and teachers in Delhi in October 1986. The resolutionnumber 5 stated "Accepting the necessity for establishing school complex(s) which may be named SScomplexes so that isolation that exists todaybetween the school will give way to partnership among schoolswithintheComplex.Theyidentifiedsixareas,to beginwith,forcollaborationamongst schoolsofitscomplex:

1.EducativeManagement	4.ProfessionalGrowthofTeachers
2.Evaluation	5.Value-OrientedSchoolClimate
3.HumanResourceMobilization	6.VocationalisationofEducation.

The year 1987 saw a further boost to the idea of setting up of SS complex (es) when CBSE in pursuance of theNational Policy of Education, 1986 used a booklet titled, "Implementation of National policy on Education inCBSE affiliated Schools-Programme of Action for three years" which reiterated school complexes and resolved to encourage the process of setting of SahodayaSchoolComplexes.

#### Background of Dr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro

Dr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchool Complex,Bokarowas inaugurated on 12<sup>th</sup> December 2002 by R. G.Balasubramanian, Director (Academics),CBSE, Delhi in accordance with the idea of Sahodaya School Complex which was first mooted by the Education Commission 1966. It was the National Policy on Education, 1966 which reiterated in strong words the need for promoting school complex for meeting the quality of education. This set the tone for bringing the schools together and networking them for healthy interaction among themselves.

"The year 1987 was a further boost to the idea of setting up of Sahodaya School Complex when CBSE in pursuance of the National Policy of Education, 1966 used a booklet titled Implementation of National Policy on Education in CBSE affiliated schools-Program of Action for three years" which reiterated school complex and resolved to encourage the process of setting of Sahodaya School Complex.

#### THEBYE-LAWSFOR'SAHODAYASCHOOL COMPLEX, BOKAROCHAPTER'

#### 1.0.3 Objectives:

"Freedom to learn and freedom to grow through Sahodaya School Complexes" (SSCs) which characterized "SSCs" as a voluntary association of schools in a given area, who through mutual choices, have agreed tocome together for a systematic and system-wise renewal of the total educational process, practice & pedagogy. In other words as "Sahodaya" signifiesrising together, it identified six areas, to be gin with, for collaboration among schools of its complex:





zed person (s) or unrecognised associations.

- (ii.) To organize allMemberSchoolsunderonebannertostandforthecommoncauseofsafeguarding the educational interest of the Member Schools which are bound by the Bye - Laws of the Sahodaya School Complex,Bokaro Chapter.
- (iii.) TocollaboratewithsimilarForumorGroupsto address common academic issuesaffectingthesmoothfunctioningofthe Member Schools.
- (iv.) Tosensitizethestakeholderstouphold ConstitutionalValueofrightcitizenship,communalharmonyandnational integration.
- (v.) For continuous development of students and improvement of teachers oftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.
- (vi.) Toupholdandpromotebetter learning experience and outcomesofeveryMemberSchool.

### **RULESANDREGULATIONS:**

#### 1.0.4 Membership:

- *(i)* TheMembership is open toall schoolsAffiliated to CBSE upto Secondary and Senior Secondary levelwithinBokaro, District.
- (ii) Application for Membership shall be submitted to the President of the Sahodaya SchoolComplex, Bokaro Chapter through Online Form available the on https://www.drsscbokaro.org/and theApplication for Membership should be sent by the interested school on the School Letter Head with thesignature ofTheSchool Principal/Principal Incharge/Manager/Director.TheApplicationshould alsocontain a Copyof theAffiliationLetter issued by CBSE, New Delhi duly signed by the School Principal and Manager with the Official Rubberstamp of the School, along with the Joining Membership Fee of Rs. 12,000/- (presently) in the form of Demand Draft/Cheque or Online Fund Transfer toDr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro Chapter in officialBank AccountNumber.
- *(iii)* The School may become a member if proposed by any existing Member Schoolata regularGeneral BodyMeeting oftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,Bokaro Chapter.
- *(iv)* The existing member schools shall pay an amount of **Rs.12,000/- (Rupees Twelve Thousand Only)** Annuallyby 15 August positively of thecurrentyear.
- (v) A Copy of the Bye-laws and Annual Statement of Income Expenditure account, Annual Budget along witha list ofAnnualPaymentmadeby differentmember schoolsand DuesList willbeavailable ontheWebsite of SahodayaSchoolComplex, BokaroChapter. Annual Magazine of Sahodaya School Complex, BokaroChaptershall also bepublished.
- (vi) A laminated Membership Certificate (Valid for One Financial Year) will be provided to each member school on the successful payment of themembership subscription once a year.





## 1.0.5 WithdrawalfromMembership:

Any member wishing to withdraw from the Membership may do so in writing to the President of the *Dr*. *RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchool Complex*, BokaroChapteron theOfficialLetter headof theSchool. On leaving the member has to surrender their membership certificate.

### 1.0.6 RemovalfromMembership:

Themember ormember Schoolshall loseits membershipin thefollowingcases;

- i. IncasetheMember actsagainsttheinterest oftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter
- ii. Incase the Member does notpaytheAnnualsubscriptionfor twoconsecutive years.
- iii. IncasetheMember resignsfromtheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter
- iv. IncasetheMemberabsentshimself/herselffromattendingthreemeetings insuccession without information (Aremindershall besent to the member through the Office bearer incase 2 meetings are missed, However justifiable Absence willbetreated with supportand concern.)
- v. For any cause the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter may deem reasonable for removal ofmembership,thememberwillbecommunicatedofthedecisionof theexpulsioninwritingfromtheCompetent Authority.

However, if the member so desires, the member will be given an opportunity for explanation and if the **explanationofthemember** is **NOTsatisfactory**, theremovalof membership will be ratified and the decision of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter (50%+1 majority) of all its Members and Office bearers shall be deemed final and binding.

TheMember,onceremovedfromtheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter,shallthereafterloosepriv ileges or powers the member is entitled to. This rule shall bind all Office Bearers and Members of theGeneralBody of theSahodayaSchoolComplex,Bokaro Chapter.

## 1.0.7 Re-Admission of Removed memberto the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter:

The Removed Member, if so desires to rejoin the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter may do so byRe - Applying as a Fresh Member by paying the Joining Fee and remitting all outstanding dues to theSahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter and only if approved by the President and Core CommitteeMembers in consultation with all the members of the General Body Members with a majority vote of 2/3rd ofthetotal strength through a Meeting of theMembers.

### 1.0.8 TheExecutiveCore CommitteeMembers:

### TheExecutiveCoreCommitteeMembersshallconsistofthefollowing OfficeBearers;

- 1. President (1No.)
- 2. Vice President(2Nos.)



भाषा मिक स्थित के मारत अप्रता मासतप्रया

- 3. General Secretary(1 No.)
- 4. Joint Secretary(1 No.)
- 5. Treasurer(1No.)
- 6. Executive Member (1 No.)

# 1.0.9 The Activity Committee Shall consist of:

- 1. Cultural Secretary
- 2. Sports Secretary
- 3. Joint Sports Secretary
- 5. Communication Incharge
- 6. Literary Secretary
- 7. Joint Cultural Secretary
- 4. Patron-Women Cell

TheElectedCoreCommitteeshallconsistof7MembersforaTenureof3yearstenurew.e.f.April1<sup>st</sup>ofthecu rrent yeartill March 31st of the 3rd year.

1.1.0 CBSECellofSahodaya SchoolsComplex,BokaroChapter:

The CBSE Cell of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter shall comprise of Principal Co-ordinatorsappointed by Central Board of Secondary Education, New Delhi and Patna Regional Office. The CBSE Cell shallcompriseof:

- 1. City Co-ordinator (AISSE and AISSCEE xaminations)
- 2. Deputy City Co-ordinator (AISSE and AISSCEE xaminations)
- 3. City-Co-ordinator(SpecialExaminationsJEE/NEET/CTETetc.)
- 4. District Training Co-ordinator
- 5. DeputyDistrictTrainingCo-ordinator

TheCBSECellshallconsistof **5Membersselected** from **Executive Committee** or **Sub Committee** for a Tenure decided by the CBSEN ew Delhiorits Regional Office in Patna.

## 1.1.1 Powersof theExecutive Committee:

- (i.) The Executive Committee shall have the authority to admit new members, remove members for the reasonsgiven in section 3.0.3 and Re - Admit the removed member as given in section 3.0.4 in consultation with themajorityof 50% + 1 of the existing General Body Members.
- (ii.) ToapprovetheexpenditurefortheProgrammesandEventsoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapte rfromtime to time.
- (iii.) ToappointadministrativepersonnelforthesmoothfunctioningoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroCha pter.
- (iv.) Toamend/suggestandimplementchangestotheBye–Lawsonapprovalof50%+1majorityfromthe ElectedCoreCommitteeof theSahodayaSchoolComplex,Bokaro Chapter.
- $(v.) \\ To Frame Rules and Regulations for Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter if situations owarrant.$
- (vi.) ToraisefundsfortheexpensesoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.
- $(vii.) {\ \ To invest funds, to make purchases for the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter.}$
- (viii.) ToprepareagendafortheMeetingsoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.

# SahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter Bye – Laws





- (ix.) TofixdatesforGeneralBodyMeetingsoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.
- $(x.) \quad {\tt To constitute subcommittees for the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter.}$
- $(xi.) \quad \ \ \text{Top} lace reports in General Body Meetings of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter.$
- (xii.) To appointauditorsto conduct theAnnual andrequiredAuditsfor theSahodayaSchoolComplex, BokaroChapter.
- (xiii.) TodetermineallowancesincludingtravelexpensesoftheOfficeBearers.ToframerulesforelectionsoftheSah odayaSchoolComplex, Bokaro Chapter.

### 1.1.2 Meetingsof theElected CoreCommittee Members:

- (i.) TheElectedCoreCommitteeMembersshallmeetatleastbimonthly.However,whenthereisanexigency,emergencymeeting shallbecalledby thePresident inconsultation oftheCoreCommittee Members.
- (ii.) The General Body Meeting shall be conducted once in every month on the 3<sup>rd</sup> Thursday of themonth(in general).TheGeneralBodymeetingshallbecalledbytheGl.Secretary, inconsultationofthePresident.
- (iii.) TheGeneralBodyMeeting

shallbecalledonnoticeofatleast7daysbyemail/SMS/WhatsAppTextMessagetothelastknownEmailID/Conta ctNumberoftheGeneralBodyMembersbytheSecretary,Communicationsin consultation with the President of the Sahodaya School Complex, BokaroChapter. However, when there is a need of exigency, emergency meetings shall be called on a short notice of 1 day by email / SMS/WhatsAppTextMessage.

- (iv.) Quorum for the Elected Core Committee Meetings: 50% + 1 of the General Body Members shall constitute the quorum of the meeting. In absence of the requisite quorum in a meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned to some other date and no quorum shall be needed for such adjourned meeting.
- (v.) Quorum for the General Body Meetings: 50% + 1 of the General Body Members shall constitute the quorumof the meeting. In absence of the requisite quorum in a meeting, the major decisions will be deferred till the next meeting.

### 1.1.3 President

The President of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro chapter should have completed thefollowingcriteria to benominated/elected as President.

- Should beaPrincipal of aCBSEAffiliated SeniorSecondary School and memberof SahodayaSchoolComplex, BokaroChapter with a minimum of 7 years' experience as Principal of an Affiliated SeniorSecondaryCBSE Schoolincluding 1 yearin Bokaro District and shouldnotbeexceeding 60 years of age.
- ThePresidentshallbetheEx-officioMember,inallcommitteeswhoshallwhenpresent,preside over the Meetings of the Sahodaya Schools Complex, Bokaro Chapter. Incase the President isunavailable, the Vice President, shall presideover themeetings.
- ThePresident, General Secretary andTreasureroftheElectedCoreCommitteeshallbetheSigningAuthoritiesfortheChequesand Income-Expensesof theDr. RadhakrishnanSahodayaSchoolComplex, BokaroChapter. Any two (President or General Secretary) can be the signing authority along with signature of Treasurer, which is a must.





- The Tenure of the President shall be of 3 years starting from the 1st April of the year till31<sup>st</sup>March ofthethird year.
- In case the President changes, retires or is impeached within the first 6 months of his/ her tenure,theElected CoreCommittee shallbere- electedby a50% + 1majority oftheexistingGeneral Body Members.
- In case the President changes, retires, or is impeached within the last 12 months of the tenure,thentheVice-PresidentshallbeIn-Chargeof theremaining tenureof theElected CoreCommittee.
- The Presidentshall be responsible to appoint an Office Clerk, Legal Advisor, or Auditor any OfficeAssistant required during his tenure. The Office Clerk, Legal Advisor or any Office Assistant shall be paidremunerationonaquarterlybasisfromthefundsoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.

## 1.1.4 VicePresident:(2Nos.)

The Vice President of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter should havecompletedthefollowingcriteriatobenominated/electedasVicePresidentoftheSahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro Chapter.

- Should be a member of Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter with a 5 year experience as Principalof an Affiliated Sec. / Sr. Sec. CBSE School including 1 year in Bokaro District and should not beexceeding60 years of age.
- The Vice President shall act as the lieutenant of the President, in allcommittees.Incase thePresident isunavailable,theVicePresidentshall presideover themeetings.
- TheTenure of theVicePresident shallbethat of3 yearsstarting fromthe1stApril ofthecurrentyear till 31st March of thethird year.
- The Vice President shall be assisting the President in all matters anddischargethedutiesoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter,intheabsenceofthePresident.The PresidentwillassigndutiestotheVicePresident.
- IncasetheVicePresidentchanges, retires or isimpeachedwithinthefirst6monthsofhis/her tenure, the President of the Elected Core Committee shall re- elect a Vice President by a 50% + 1 majority of the existing Core Committee Members and General BodyMembers.
- Incase the Vice President changes, retires, oris impeached within the last 12 months of the tenure, then the President shall be In Charge of the remaining tenure of the Elected Core Committee

### 1.1.5 The General Secretary: (1 No.)

The Secretary of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter should have completed





thefollowingcriteriatobenominated/electedasSecretaryoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.

- Should be a Principal of a CBSE affiliated Secondary/Senior Secondary School and member of SahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro Chapter with5years' experience as Principal of an Affiliated Sec./ Sr. Sec.CBSESchoolincluding 1 yearin BokaroDistrict and should not be exceeding 60 years of age.
- Should have a minimum perience of 1 yearor above in the Role of a Principal of a CBSEAffiliated Secondary/Senior Schools within the District.
- TheSecretaryshallact as a delegate oftheEx-officio.Incasethe President, Vice President is unavailable,theSecretary shall preside over themeetings. However, 75% of the members must be present for the meeting.
- TheTenureof theSecretary shallbethatof3 yearsstarting fromthe1stApril ofthecurrentyeartill 31<sup>st</sup>Marchof thefollowing 2 years.
- The Secretariat shall be assisting the Presidentin all matters and discharge the duties assigned by the President.
- In case the Secretary or any of its member (s) changes, retires or is impeached within the first 6 months of his/her tenure, the President of the Elected Core Committee shall re- elect the Secretary by a 50%
  +1 majorityoftheexisting CoreCommittee Members and General Body Members.
- In case the Secretary or any of its member (s) changes, retires/separates/quits/transfer/leaves the job within the last 12 months of thetenure, then the Presidentor in his absence, the Vice President shall be In–Chargeof theremaining tenureof theElected CoreCommittee.

The number of Secretary Members shall be decided by the Elected Core Committee Members inconsultationwiththePresidentandVicePresidentatanypointintimeofthetenuredependingon therequirementthrough a meeting. General Secretary is the Custodian of all office files and data.

#### 1.1.6 Joint Secretary (1 No.):

The Joint Secretary of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter should have completed thefollowingcriteriatobenominated/electedasSecretariesoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.

- Should be a Principal of a CBSE affiliated Secondary/Senior Secondary School and member of SahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro Chapter with 5years' experience as Principal of an Affiliated Sec./ Sr. Sec.CBSESchoolincluding 1 yearin Bokaro District and should not be exceeding 60 years of age.
- The Joint Secretary in all committees when present, preside over the Meetings of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter. Incase Secretary is unavailable, the Joint Secretary, in whose absence, the SSC members, (at least 50%+1 members of the SSC members should be present) shall preside over the meetings.
- TheTenureof theJoint Secretary shallbethatof3 yearsstarting fromthe1stApril ofthecurrentyeartill 31<sup>st</sup>Marchof thefollowing 2 years.
- In case the Joint Secretary or any of its member (s) changes, retires or is impeached within the first 6 months of his/her tenure, the President of the Elected Core Committee shall re- elect the Joint Secretary by a 50%+1 majority of the existing Core Committee Members and General Body Members





 In case the Joint Secretary or any of its member(s) changes or retires within the last 12 months of thetenure, then the President or in his absence, the Vice President shall be In–Chargeof theremaining tenureof theElected CoreCommittee.

The number of Joint Secretary Member shall be decided by the Elected Core Committee Members inconsultationwiththePresidentandVicePresidentatanypointintimeofthetenuredependingon therequirementthrough a meeting.

### 1.1.7 Treasurer:(1Nos.)

TheTreasurer(1)oftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChaptershouldhavecompletedthefollowin gcriteriatobenominated/electedasTreasureroftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapter.

- Should be a member of Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter for a Total of 5years experience asPrincipalofanAffiliatedSec./Sr.Sec.CBSESchoolincludingof1yearinBokaroDistrictandshouldnot be exceeding 60 years of age.
- Should haveanexperience of 1 yearor abovein theRole of a Principalof aCBSEAffiliatedSecondary/SeniorSecondary Schoolwithin theDistrict.
- TheTreasurershall beelectedfor atenureof3years startingfromthe1stApril ofthecurrentyeartill 31<sup>st</sup>March of the following 2 years. *He/She shall be the Compulsory Signing authority with the President or on all Cheques related to Accounts, Expense - Income ofSahodaya Schools Complex,BokaroChapter account(s) operatedfromaNationalised or GovernmentApproved PrivateBank.*
- TheTreasurershallbethe<u>custodianofthecashoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapterandshall deal</u> with all cash transactions sanctioned in writing by the President and Vice President.
- The Treasurer should collect all dues, if any from all members including the Elected Core CommitteeMembers. The Cash transactions for the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter should only be donethrough OnlineCashTransactionsthrough NEFTor ElectronicFundTransfers tothespecifiedBankAccountoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex, BokaroChapter.
- The Treasurer shall through the Presidentand Secretarysend a reminder to the Defaulter Members for the submission of Joining/ Annual/ Incidental Subscriptions including Elected CoreCommitteeMembers if any.
- TheTreasurershallintimate thePresident and Secretary about the defaulter member for his/ her termination of membership from the Sahodaya School Complex, BokaroChapter duetonon – paymentofrequired subscription for a period of 2 years after 2 reminders.
- TheTreasurershallmaintainallrecords,booksandpresentreceiptsandpaymentsaccount,IncomeandExpendi ture Account and the Audit Report to the Elected Core Committee Meetings and General





BodyMeetingsand submit a copy to thePresident.

- IncasetheTreasurerchanges, retiresor isimpeached within the first sixmonths of his/hertenure, the President of the Elected Core Committee shall re- elect the Treasurer by a 2/3rd majority of the existing Core Committee Members and General Body Members or assign the duties of the Treasurer to the Vice President.
- In case the Treasurer changes, retires, or is impeached within the last 12 months of the tenure, then thePresidentshall assign theduties oftheTreasurer totheSecretary andHe/ SheshallbeIn– Chargeof theremainingtenureof theElected CoreCommittee.

### 1.1.8 <u>ElectionProcessofthe SahodayaSchoolsComplex,Bokaro Chapter:</u>

- The Election of the Elected Office Bearers will be held by the third Saturday of March before the end of tenureof the current Elected Office Bearers (President, Vice President, Treasurer andSecretarybeforetheendof3Years tenure).
- The Elected Presidentalong with the Core Committee cannot hold office for more than 2terms in continuation.
- Election shall be conducted in the presence of <u>All General Body Members along with the</u> <u>Elected CoreCommitteeMembers throughOnlineVoteorSecret Ballot.Or any other way as</u> <u>decided by Core Committee Members.</u>
- Each member shall be allowed only 1 Vote each for the election of the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer; in all a total of 7 Votes permember is allowedincluding the existing Core CommitteeMembers.

The Nominations should be filed for the post of the President by the interested GeneralBodyMembers under the fulfillment of thefollowing criteria;

- a. TheMembershouldhaveaminimumof1yearofMembershipinSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapte r.
- b. The Membership Fee and all dues of the Candidate should be up to date to file in nomination for the Post ofPresident.
- c. <u>The Member should have served as a Principal for a minimum period of 1year in the District</u> <u>and in total 7 yearsin CBSE Affiliated Senior Secondary School within the District and</u> <u>should not be exceeding the age of 60yearsif selected as the President</u>.
- d. President alongwiththeVicePresident/ SecretaryoftheexistingCoreCommitteeshallnominate from the existing Member Principals in the age group of 58 to 60 yearsapplicableforthedate ofelectionandfor





theforthcomingtenureofthenewlyelected corecommittee.

- e. ProcessofElection(ElectionNominations,Withdrawal,Nominationfilingandelection) shallbeheldin the month of March of the concerned year.
- f. Handingoverandtransferofchargestothenewlyformedcommitteemembersand meetingofthefirstCore Committee shallbeheldbetween 20<sup>th</sup>to 30th Marchoftheelection year.
- g. ForanyPortfolio, memberscontesting for Elections should notexceed theageof60 years.
- h. Membersexceeding60years of agewho arePrincipalsofAffiliatedCBSESec/Sr.SecSchoolsoftheDistrictofBokaroareONLYEligibletoexerciseth eirVotingrightsandshallNOTbepermittedtoContestfor Elections.

### 1.1.9 <u>FinanceandAccounts:</u>

### 1.2.0 FinancialYear:

TheFinancialYearoftheSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChapterineachyearshallbeof12monthsfrom1<sup>st</sup>Ap ril of thecurrentyear till 31<sup>st</sup>March of thefollowingyear.

### 1.2.1 Petty Cash:

The Treasurer cankeepapetty cash of Rs. 10,000/-(Rupees Ten Thousand Only) inhand for emergency and any amount higher than that shall be deposited in the Bank Account of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter.

### 1.2.2 BankAccount:

- A Current Account will be jointly opened and operated by the President, GI.SecretaryandTreasurerinaScheduledCommercialBank(Nationalized/GovernmentRecognisedPrivat eReputedBank)
- The Account should be operated by a minimum of 2 Core Committee Members. The signature of the President/General Secretary along with the Treasurer shall be mandatory.
- The President or Vice President and Treasurer should ensure that the authorized signatoriesareupdatedintheBankbeforetheendoftheirTenureinthebankaccountofSahodayaSchoolComp lex, BokaroChapter for the smooth functioning of the Account of the Sahodaya School Complex,BokaroChapter.

### 1.2.3 FundRaising:

The Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter may raise funds for development, to meet educational goals of Sahodayaand its objectives withduesanction after a special meeting called for thepurpose.





The Elected Core Committee Members will frame the Modalities of Utilisation of Funds through a GeneralBody Meeting called for the purpose and has to be passed by 50% + 1 of the total strength of the memberspresent.

### 1.2.5 Remuneration:

 Unless authorised at any meeting or after a notice for same has been given, No Office Bearer orMember of the General Body of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter shall receive anyRemunerationforHis/Her ServicestotheSahodayaSchoolComplex,Bokaro Chapter.

- The President shall be appointed with the 2/3rd majority of the Elected Core CommitteeMembersandGeneral Body Members any of thefollowing as andwhen theneed be;
- i. AnOfficeClerk
- ii. ALegalAdvisor
- iii. CharteredAccountant/ Consultant/Professional(Specific toany particularissue)
- The Remuneration for only the above 3 person (s) shall be approved by the 50%+1 Majority of the ElectedCoreCommittee Members and General Body Members.

The Remuneration may be paid on a quarterly basis to the above three mentioned or can be paid as a Fee to the Professional/ Consultant/ Chartered Accountant or Legal Advisor for rendering their services for the SahodayaSchoolComplex, BokaroChapter.

### 1.2.6 Audit:

The funds of the SahodayaSchoolsComplex, Bokaro shall be audited by a qualified Chartered Accountant and report shall be placed in the General Body Meeting by 31<sup>st</sup> August of every year.

#### AccessOf Booksand Records toMembers :

- The Books and Records of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter may be inspected by ANYmember of the General Body at any time upon giving reasonable notice and arranging a time satisfactory to the President, Secretary and Treasurer who are In-Charge of the books and records.
- The Annual Budget, Audit Report has to be placed before the General Body Members by the TreasurerAnnually each year in the beginning. The summary of the last financial year shall be shared with all Membersof the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter and especially before the Election Term for a NewElectedCoreCommittee and to maintain transparency.
- The Accounts of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter shall be audited by a RegisteredChartered Accountant appointed by the Elected Core Committee with 50%+1 Majority from the General BodyMembers.





TheauditedaccountsshallbepresentedatthemeetingoftheFinancialYear in general, on 31<sup>st</sup>
 AugustfortheapprovaloftheMembers of theElected CoreCommittee and General Body Members.

## 1.2.7 Amendment/Repealofthe Bye- Laws:

- The above Bye Laws may be amended or revised or repealed with the consent of 50%+1 of the Members ofSahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter (Elected Core Committee and General Body Membersinclusive)
- Any change/ revision/ repeal of the Bye Laws shall be proposed by the President to theSahodayaSchool Complex, BokaroChapterthrough a General Body Meeting.
- A 50%+1majority shallat alltimes berequiredto change/revise/ repealany Bye-Laws oftheSahodayaSchoolComplex, Bokaro Chapter through a 'SpecialResolution'

### 1.2.8 Dissolution:

- ONLY if 2/3<sup>rd</sup> of the members of the General Body Members demand the dissolution of the SahodayaSchoolsComplex,BokaroChapter,theSahodayaSchoolComplex,BokaroChaptershallbedissolv ed.
- The un utilised funds in the account of the Sahodaya School Complex, Bokaro Chapter shall be disclosed to all Existing Qualified Members by the Elected Core Committee President and with the authorized signatories be returned in exact ratio of contribution made by the members towards the Account of theSahodayaSchool Complex, Bokaro Chapter ason the date of dissolution.

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*